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WEDNESDAY,/J:qNE 12, 1912.

1
~.:

10 0 tclock A. M.

18 2 Defendant in court with counsel. Jury called; all

3 present.

4

5

Case resumed.

C. E. W HIT E -,

6 on the stand for further cross-examination:

7 BY MR. ROGERS. Q Mr. Whi te, when Franklin came to your

8 house at 6:30, or about that time of the evening, did he

9 tell you any reason why he had not brought the money with

10 him? A Yes.

11 Q What was it? A He stated that he had reached either

12 the bank or safe deposi t too late to draw it.

13 MR. ROGERS. That is all.

14 REDIRECT EXAMINATION.

15 BY MR. FREDERICKS. Q, Do you know why you were not pro­

16 s ecuted, Mr. Write, for this offense?

17 MR. ROGERS •. Objected to as incompetent, irrelevant and

I
, .

I

18 immaterial and calling for a conclusion or opinion, no

26 the cour t room wi th m.J permission to use the 'phone and

19 found a tion laid; hearsay.

20 THE COURT. Objection sustained.

21 MR. FREDERICKS. Q Did you have a talk wi th the dis tr ict

22 attorney up in the office at the time that you were arrested

23 and before you were permitted to go?

He left

Now, just a moment--Mr. DarroW stepped into24 THE COURT.

25 the 'phone and we will have to wait a moment.



will have to wai t a few moments until he returns.

MR. ROGERS. All right, go aaad.

MR. FREDERICKS. Q Is that question finished?

(~as t quee tion read by the repor tar. )

MR. APPEL. We ocject upon the ground it is incompetent,

irrelevant and immaterial, hearsay, not admissible for any

purpose.

MR. FREDERICKS. The position is this: Counsel has asked

the Witness whether he had ever been prosecuted or whether

he had ever been informed agains t, and all that, now we want

to show why.

they are hearsay, not bindingFranklin or anyone else;

THE COURT • 1 think the distr io t attorney is enti tIed to

make a showing. Objection overruled.

MR APPEL. We take an exception.

A 1 did.

MR. FREDERIOKS. Q In regard to --and did you make a

statement while you were up there in regard to the facts

which had occurred between you and Franklin so far as

you knew them?

MR • APPEL. Wai t a rrJoment --we object to that upon the groun

it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial for any purpose;

that the question calls for acts, declarations and conduct

of the Witness upon the stand after the alleged corr-mission

of the offense, if any, and that his acts and declarations

after that time are not admissible inevidence
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the defendant, no foundation laid; leading and suggestive.

2 THE C01JR T. Overruled.

3 MR. APPEL. We t<.-'.ke an exception.

4 MR. FREDERICKS. Read the ques tion.

5 (Question read by the reporter.) A 1 did.

6 Q And state whether or not you said at that time--any-

7 thing was said by you at that time as to your willingness

8 to testify to those facts?

9 MR· APPEL. Wait a mon:;ent--we object to that upon the

10 ground that the question is leading and suggestive; it is

11 i nJOTIipetent, irrelevant and imrnater ial; calls for hearsay

12 testimony,not in the presence of the defendant; not binding

13 upon the defendan t; calls for declarations and acts of this

14 witness and for conduct in response to said declarations of

15 this witness by other persons and after the commission of the

16 alleged offense.

17 THE COURT. Obj ec tion overruled.

18 MR. APPEL. Vi e take an exception.

19 MR • FREDERICKS· Read the ques tion •

was willing to testify for the state.

(Last question read by the reporter.)20

21

22

A 1 stated at that time to the district attorney that 1
tV/

23 Q And before you made the statement, Captain, state what

24 was said to you in regard to whether or not you would be

25 prosecuted provided you told the true story?

26 MR . ArPEL' Vi e rrake the sarne objection upon each
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the grounds stated in our last objection to the last ques­

tion-propounded to the witness.

THE COUR T• Overr ul ed •

MR. APPEL. We take an exception.

A What was the question 1

(Last question read by the reporter.)

A The district attorney stated to me if 1 went on the ~

stand and told the true story 1 wO'l:ld not be prosecuted.

MR. FREDERICKS' Q State the, whether or not you made a

statenent taken down by a shorthand reporter before you

left the office of the district attorney?

MR. APPEL. We object to that upon the ground it is incom­

petent, irrelevant and irr~aterial, calling for hearsay

eVidence; no foundation laid; not binding upon the defend­

anti not tending to prove the remotest element of the

offense charged in the indictment here.

THE COURT. overruled.

MR. APPEL We take an exception.

A 1 did make such statement •

MR • FREDERICKS. Now read the question and answer.

(Last question and answer read by the reporter.)

Q From the time you left Franklin down--or parted wi th

Franklin down near the corner of Third and Los Angeles

until the time when you made this staterr.ent in the district

attorney's office, had you seen Frank1in--l will not say had

seen hi IT, but had you any conversation wi th him at all?
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A No, sir.

MR. Appel' Just a moment-_we object to that as not redirect;

it is incorr~etent, irrelevant and immaterial, and upon the

further ground trat was a matter that should have been

brought up in tis examination in chief, and the Witness

haVing testified to all the circumstances in connection or

relating to the rna tter, he was questioned upon, and we

object to it on the further ground it is leading and sugges-

tive.

--------

THE COUR T. overruled.

MR .J.-APPEL. We -.take an exception.

1m. FREDERICKS. The answer then, 1 presurre is what?

A No.

Q Were you with Franklin at any time between the time

when you parted with him down near Third and Los Angeles

s tr eet that morning and the time wh en you mac&e this s tate­

ment at any time except when you were inthe presence and

custody of officers?

MR. APPEL. We make the same objection made to the last

question propounded to the witness upon each and all of the

grounds s tated insaid o~jection.

THE COUR T. overruled.

MR .. APPEL· We take an exception.

A No, sir.

MR. FREDERICKS· That is all.
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.<

fice.

1908.

:M'R FREDERICKS: What is your name? A Samuel L. Browne.

A Los Angeles City.

DIRECT ~N~INATION

Samuel L. Browne? A That is my name.

Where do you live, Mr Bro\\'!le?

What is your business? A Employed in the District

THE CLERK:

Q

Q

¥

1m ROGERS: That is all.

Attorne,y's office.

Q How long have you been so employed? A Sinc.e March,

Q What, in general, is your employment? A Detective.

Q Do YO\l know George Lockwood? A Yes si r.

Q .' When, if ever, did you first learn that George Lockwood

had been drawn as a juryman in the case 0 f the Peopl e

versus ].{cNamara and others? A' On a Saturjday afternoon,

November 25, 1911.

Q And wh ere were you when you lam ad. t:m t? A In your of-

""""\,
\

8A~nrEL L. BROWNE, a witness called onbehalf

of the people. being first duly sworn, t estifi ed as fol­

lovfs:

material. The Supreme Court has stated in one deci sion,

at least, ver,r forcibly, too, that the perambulations of

man in the course of his business, invest~~ating matters

Q After lea~ing that, state 'where you went?

1m APPEL: We object to that upon the ground that it is im-
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1 of this kind, his OWl acts are immaterial. Why can't he

2 come square to the point what Mr Browne saw or heard in

3 rela tion to 'the case and his history as to how a man 'Nen'lt

4 from one pmce to another is immaterial. Mr Bro\vne can

5 state the acts he saw anyone doing, orwhichwere done by

6 anybody in the matter in dispute.

7 MR FREDERICKS: We are trying to avoid leading.

8 THE COURT: The obj ection is the qu estion is not confined

9 to what he did wi th referenc e to Juror Lockwood, or anythi~

10 in rela tion tot his case?

11 :MR APPEL: No, your Honor, yhat he did is immaterial, and

12 \\hat he --

13 MR FORD: I think the ",.fitness is an intelligent witness.

14 THE COURT: I think the question is too broad. Obj ~tion

15 sustained.

16 lJ[R FREDERICKS: 'What did you do, if' ar.wthing, Mr Browne,

17 after receiving that in forma tion in regard to makincs 6bser­

18 vations cone eming 1fr LockNood and Mr Franklin end any deal

19 ings tmt thev might have had together, what did you do in

20 regard to trot, if anything? A Iwent out to :Mr Lockwood's

21 house, that is, in the vicinity of it.

22 Q Vvhat time did you leave to go out to ][r Lockwood's

23 house? A I left -- it was after dark, possibly between

24 ? and 8 o'clock.

25 Q And who went '!r.i.th you, Hr Browm:e? A ~,Mr Allison.

26 Q Who is :Mr Allison? A He, at th at



"1636

1 employed in my office.

2 Q, ur Allison. Who else? A lUss Hitchcock.

3 Q, V.ho is sh e? A She is the same ca~city in my office,

4 and Mr Ong.

5 Q, vtlo is he? A He is employed in the Distridt Attor-

6 nay's office.

7 Q, Anyone else'? A And anoth er young man 'Nho drove th e

8 machine; I just cannot recall his name.

9 Q, Was anyone in charg e of th e p arty? A I was.

10 Q, At what time did you get to the vicini ty of lfr Lock­

11 wood's house? A We got out to Mr Lockwood's house be-

12 tNeen 8 and 9 o'clock.

13 Q, At night? A At night.

14 Q, yes. And what did you do -- that was Saturday night,

15 the 25th? A That ~s Saturday night, the 25th, we passed

16 Loc1.--wood's house on -- got the location of it, ran down

17 th e road a sho rt ways and ",ent over in a small private

18 road, ~parently in a bean field, andsat for a little

19 while and wa tclled the ro ad 1 eading reck and forth and left

20 and came to Los Ang eles.

21 Q Who were you'!JatChing for?

221m APPEL: We obj ect to that as immaterial.

23 THE COUR!': Obj ~tion sustained.

24 Q Did you see ur Franklin come there that Jlight? A I /

25 did not.

26 MR APPEL: Your Bono r vlill see the absolute
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1 of those things, of his sitting in a bean patch and \l.8tch­

2 ing around. We want to g et down to the point where he saw

3 som ething •

4 :MRFREDERICKS: Well, v.e h8V'e our own poouliar way of do­

5 ing thing s •

6 THE COURT: There is no obj ootion before the court.

7 ~R FREDERICKS: What were you doing out there at th at time,

8 wh.e. t vas the purpo re 0 f your being there?

9 MR APPEL: . We obj ec t to th at as immaterial, \V1a t hi s -pur­

10 poses were. How can that be material?

11 THE COURT: Obj ootion sustained.

12 Q How lo~ did you stay there, you and this party? A Oh,

13 I guess somethil1g less than a half hour. I didn't take

14 th e exac t time, I sati sfi ed my self as to the purpo se I went

15 for and I eft.

16 Q Well, did yousee ar.wbody come to Lochvood's house mile

17 youwere there? A I did not.

18 Q On :Monday, the 2'7th of November, state .,.;hether or not

19 you yrent out there to Mr Lochvood's again? A I did.
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Q What time? A In the evening.

Q Had you seen yr Lockwood that day before youwent out?

A I saw him t hat day in Los Angel es.

Q Where? A At you r residence.

Q And ',vhowent 'with you tat night when you went out to

Lockwood's house, that is, the night of the 27th, llonday

night? A There was llr Ong, Mr Carey, Mr Allison, and .Tim

Campbell and myself.

Q Who ,~s in c mrge of the party? A I vas.

Q What time di d you go out to Mr Lockwood's house t ret

nigh t? A Got there a Ii ttle before 9 0 'clock.

Q And state whether or not you saw Mr LockNOd there \mEn

you got there? A I saw Jlr Lockwood.

Q WhO else did you see, if anybody? A I saw]lr Hicks.

Q Who is Mr Hicks? A Constable, I think his name is

Hicks.

Q; How soon after you got there di d I lave. A Innned­

iately.

Q Now, after that 1..hat did you doy;ith the men you had

there under your charg e? A I plac ed them in different

posi tions around ur Lockwood's premises.

Q Well,where did you pl~e them? A well, I put Allison

up on the ...vater tank. J'
Q Where was th e "vater tank? A That was in the rear of 1fr.
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Q Where did you put the others? A 1 put Mr. ~arey and

~. Ong on one side of the door.

Q The door of what 1 A The door of the barn, inside of the

1 Lockwood's house between the house and the barn.

2 Q How far is the house from the barn, about? A Oh, 1

3 should judge"lOO feet.

4

5

6

A A little while.after 1 had thenight, if so Who?

placed Bert Fran klin came there.

11

12

7 barn. 1 put them on one side of the door and Hicks on the

8 other side, both up in the loft in the hay, . and Jim Camp-

9 bell and myself were in the back screen porch of Mr. LockWood's,

10 Q State whether or not anybody came to Mr. LockWood's that

13 Q And state what he did in your observation and what hesaid

14 in your hearing, if anything? A As Lockwood came around

15 the s ide of his houa e he had to pass the back screen porch .'

16 He said to Franklin, said, "Bert, 1 want to be sure this is

17 safe." Franklin said, "It is all righti 1 will assure

18 you it is all right." That was right within a few feet of us

19 they were walking slow ar'ound the back of the house.

20 Q Coming in Which direction? A Going towards the barn.

21 They then walked down and stood under the water tank and

22 they stood there a few minutes and talked. 1 couldn't tell

23 what they said, 1 catch a word now and then. Then they

24 noved further down under the tank towards the barn and then

25 they swi tched and went out towards the road leading out

26 from LockWood's house on the other side of the house.
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1 the time they were walking very slow and talking, then they

2 walked out to the main road and Franklin left.

3 Q How long did they remain by the water tank? A Oh, several

4 mi nutes.

5 Q And how long did they remain talking together after

6 they left the water tank and went out towards the north?

7 A About the same length of time 11 .
8 Q What was the condition of the night as to being dark or

9 moonlight? A The moon at that ~e had not came up very-
10 well; it was quite dark.

11 Q Did you have any conversation wi th Mr. Lockwood in regard

12 to any signals of any kind that he was to give you in case 0

13 a happening of any event?

14 MR. APPEL· Your Honor, we don 1 t like to obj ec t, your Honor,

15 but we would like to know what is the purpose of this ques-

16 tion. Wh,ther they had a signal or not is simply to

17 illustrate the method of catching people or is it to

18 prove any fact agains t this defendant.

19 i nmater ial . I jus t wan t to know.

20 THE COuRT' Obje ction overruled.

21 A.ffi - APPEL. Take an except ion •

We object to it as

22 A I had arranged a signal with Mr- Lockwood.

23 MR. FREDERICKS. Q What was it and under what circumstances

24 was it to be given?

25 MR. APPEL. We object to that now as calling for hearsay

26 evidence, inconlpetent, irr elevan t and immater ial



1 purpose whatsoever, any arrangement made between the detec-

2 tives themselves, any statement between therr.selves as to howl

3 they were going to proceed or what manner, is immaterial for

4 any purpose whatsoever; it is hearsay.

5 THE COURT' Objection overruled.

6 MR. APrEL· We take an exception.

7 A 1 had arranged a signal wi th Mr. Lockwood that when Frank-

8 lin passed him any money he was to give him this signal.

9 MR. FREDERICKS. Q The signal was to light a match.

10

11

Q Did he light a match that night while Franklin was there?

A Fe did not.

12 Q About how long was Franklin there altogether? A Well,

13 I should say about ten minutes.
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Q Did you notic e how he came?? A No, 1 didn't see how he

came; 1 heard it •

Q Well, could you tell from what you heard how he came?
behind

A Just before he came around/the house 1 heard anautomobil

come down the road and it stopped.

Q Where did it stop, infcont of the house or further--

A Well, from where 1 was I couldn,t tell. It sounded like

it was sort of off the corner of the house, came down the

road, stopped right there, because the road leading into

the house is aO little bit from Lock'Wood's house.

Q And did you come out from the porch at any ti~e while

Franklin and Lockwood were there?
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1 A After Franklin and Lockwood sta !'ted fPlay from the

2 water-tank and sta rted out towards the road leadi~ to the

3 Inain road I came out of the porch around in the shadow of

4 the house and got under an orange tree; as they passed me

5 they passed along the roa d, out, and I followed them out so

6 as to keep them both in sight. If I had stayed in the

7 porch, they ·v)Quld have gotten out of my sight after goiI:\g

8 to the main roa d, because 'I \'mS in reck of' th e house.

9 Q Did you overhear any other conversations except what

10 you have given here that you remember? A I heard Frank­

11 lin say one time. ItI will see the Captain".

12 Q, Now. d.id you know Captain White? A I do now; I did

13 not at th at time •

14 Q, After he left th e1'e. how 1011g did. you remain at Lock-

15 Vlood t s place? A I left Lockwood t s house about half. past

16 ten.

17 Q, State vmether or not you had a talk with Lockvlood

18 after Franklin left the hou sa?

19 1!R APPEL: we object to ttet es incoIDp3tent, irrelevant

20 and innnaterial, calling for hearsay statements between tvJO

21 persons then and at that time not connected with this case.

22 Insofa r as affec ting the defendant is conc erned, it is in­

23 competent. irrelevant f.nd iImnatel'ial for any purposes what­

24 soever, hearsay.

25 THE COUll: Let me have that question again. (Question

26 sead. )
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1 MR :ro'RD: The purpo se is to show that Lock\vood was only a

2 feigned accomplic e.

3 THE COURT: ' Objection overruled.

4 A yes sir.

5 lJR APPEL: Exc ept i on.

6 :MR FREDERICKS: And state whether or not in t J::at conversa-

7 tion llr Lochvood recount ed to y-ou Vlhat he said had occur­

8 red between him and Frmklin while Frenklin was there?

9 1lR APPEL: We obj act to that on th e g rcund it is incompe­

10 tent. irrelevant and immatlerial t hearsay. not bindirg upon

11 the defendant.

12 l~R :EBEDE?.ICKS: Hearsay testimony. your Honor. is one Vlit­

13 ness saying what another witness said. I am not asting

14 for that; I am asking this wi tness whether he had a conver­

15 sation ....lith Lockwood in \vhich Lockwood told him what Frank-

16 lin. -- woot had occurred. I am not asking to state what

17 Franklin reid to him. but simply Baking the fact.

18 TEE COURT: This question calls for an answer yes 0 r no?

19 MR FREDERI CRB : yes si r.

20 MR ROGERS: If your Honor please, might I su~gest that he

21 asked the witness for the substance of the conversation

22 and the sUbjec:t matter of it.

23 THE COURI': If I thought he did, I v.oul d sustain the obj 00­

24 tion.

25 MR FREDERICKS: Th ere is no doubt shout that, and the qu

26 tion do es not call for that.
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1 UR AFPF..L:The question is as has been demonstrated bY

2 that fact

3 THE COURT: -Read it (Questionread).

4 MR JiREDERICKS: I am not asldng for any 0 f th at conver-

5 ~tion at all.

6 THE COURT: (jbj ootion overrnled. Answer the question yes

7 or no.

8 1m AFPEL : Ex:c eption.

9 A yes sir.
.w.

10 :SR FREDERICKS: Now, after you ::art -- ~rou left Lockwood 's

11 that night -- \":here did you go? A I retum ed to Los

12 Angeles and went to your residence.

13 Q What time did you IS et there to '1!IY house? A About a

14 quarter past one in the morning.

15 Q How lor:g did you stay there?

16 MR APPEL: we obj ret to that as immaterial, hearsay;

17 we object to anyects or declarations or statements or aru

18 other facts, time, place, circumstance of my kind or

19 nature which 0 ccurredat any time, when 1[1' Browne and Cap­

20 tain Fredericks vlere together, either at his home or else­

21 ~here and not in the presence of the defendant, as hea~

22 say.

23 l.~R FREDRICKS: I an not going to ask for atU cOl1\Tersation.

24 lfR APPEL: The worst kind of hearsay, absoluteJy incompe­

25 tent, irrelevant and immaterial for any purpose,

26 admissible in any court anywhere.
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1 THE COURT: Objection sustained.

2 UR FREDERICKS: The question was not for the conversation,

3 you I' Honor, 'the question',<as, "How long did you stay there"?

4 THE COURT: The obj ec tion is it is innnat eriel. I canno t

5 see anv mat eriali ty.

6 MR FREDERICKB: State whether 0 I' not all of the m-en who were

7 with you out e.t the Lockwood house, with theecceptions of

8 Hicks, were vlithyou when you came into my house that

9 night.

10 J[R APPEL: We make thesame obj rotion ·,'.hether all Vlere

11 there or vhether Hicks "Ii\SS n,ot there, or v.Jhether anvbody

12 was there; it is innnatel'ial. How does it w.ake f.tV fact

13 admissible here? It couldnotaffect the issues here. It

14 is hea rsay •

151m FREDERICKS: Well, the point is this --

16 MR APPEL: It is hearsay. It is just rot, attempting to

17 mow and i~lustrf,te \mat these menwere doing for their om

18 El\ tisfad tion here; that i s all there i s to it.

19 J.ffi FREDERICKS: Oh, no.

20 MR APPEL: I t does not tend to prove th e gUilt or innoc enc e

21 of the defen dant.

22 THE COURl.': Let me hear Captain Fredericks, perhaps he

23 will advance some reason, end I will hear from you, then.

24 I have ju at sustained an obj ection along t ret &'.me line.

25 Now, Captain Fredericks has advanc ed the mat tel' a nd I \vi

26 hear from him and if he advances some reason, and I see i
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2 Jffi FPPEL:

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Your Honor Blstained one obj ection --

'1646



1647

5p 1 MR. FREDERICKS. We 11, any time-­

2 MR • APPEL. Go ahead.

3 MR. FREDERICKS' Thank you. We are making no attempt, and

4 have no desire to get anything before the court for our own

5 self-satisfaction. Counsel has made a claim here that this

6 matter was all a frame up. That might be. 1 don't know.

7 That might be one of his arguments to this jury and we wish

8 to shan this jury every step that was taken in this matter

9 so that they can determine for thenselves whether there was

10 any frame up or whether or not it was the earnes t effort of

11 the law officers to apprehend those co mIni tting crime. That

12 is the purpose, of showing every infinitesimal step that

13 was taken, and that is the only purpose.

14 . MIt • APPEL. Your Honor, that is a collateral issue and if it

15 were a matter which was directly i n issue here as a sub-

16 stantive issue, it would not allow the district attorney

17 or our s elves to go out of the rules of evidence to prove or

18 disprove by hearswand incompetent eVidence, because our

19 argument may be one way from the proper facts admitted in

20 evidence. We have a right to draw our own theories and our

21 own conclusions from legitimate evidence only; that would

22 not give counsel here the right to show that the fellow

23 who was up there in the hay stack had the bottom part of

24 his anatomy above the top of the hay stack or his head up;

25 that would be perfectly irrmaterial. 1t would not allow

26 him to show that one of Mr. Browne's
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tank or out of it, perfectly immaterial; 1 t would not

allow them to show that Mr. Browne went out there certain

times that night and didn't see anybody, because that would

not prove any fact; it would not be right to show that Mr.

Fredericks put one of his men in a chicken coop or any­

thing of that sort. We draw arguments, we draw conclusions,

first from 1egi timate evidence and the way to prove a fact

is to prove it by legitimate evidence, you cannot prove any

fact by self-serving situations or self-serving conditions

or self-serving statements. A man might as well say upon

the witness e tand he made a e tatement to so and so to show

he didn 1 t commit a cr ime. You would not allow that to be

done. Now, these gentlemen are defending themselves--

MR. FREDERICKS- No, we are not defending ourselves.

MR. APPEL. You are exactly defending yourselves.

MR. FREDERICKS- We are not defending - ourselves.

MR. APPEL- Get it out of your system.

THE COURT. Mr. Appel has the floor.

MR. APPEL- I,et us see if he is not defending hilSe1f. He

just got up here and told this jury that someone has been

rocus ed of a cas e of abe 01u te fr ame up. Now, befor ewe

are trying to show that fact by legitimate evidence he is

trying to d3fend himself, perhaps in some way or another he

has become impr eased wi th the idea that a man, distr ict

attorney or anyone else, accused of work, or allOWS another

one to put up a job on another one who is undertaking to ~I
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commi t a cr ime, it ia as much/a legal sense a frame up--

2 it as much an instigation to commit a crime for self-

3 s atisfaction"and for vain glory as if another one stands by

4 and allows ano tlil!r one to commit a cr ime in his pr es ence

5 and does not raise his finger and he ought to raise it and

6 prevent the corr~iseion of that crime; and for fear that we

7 should argue these matters to the jury, he is undertaking

8 to show, "What did youtell me Browne, what did 1 tell you?"

9 MR. FREDERICKS· Now, 1 have not asked any such question,

10 your Honor •

11 MR. APPEL. "Did you bring all your men with you except

12 Hicks, Did this man Lockwood tell you wha thad trans-

Oh, it

13 pired between him and. Mr. Frcn klin? t.,And did you go over

14 there to my house at half past one inthe morning? II

15 cannot be possible he says, that this was a frame up,

16 because, forsooth, Browne came to his house at half past

17 one inthe morning. Why, gentlemen of the jury, you cannot

18 even imagine for a moment--that is his:argument--

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 THE COURT: Mr Appel

MR FREDERICKS: Well, that doesntt quite answer the ques-

Obj 00 tion 0 verrul ed •

Might answer it yes or no. State whethertion, 1fr Brovme.

read by the reporter.)

MR APPEL: We exc ept •

A The same pa rty that went out \'.1. th me c".me in.

or not the fWme persons whom you hare described as going

out ~thyou.,came in vdt.h you to illy house that night.

MRAPPEL: Wait a moment~ W3 obj ect upon the ground that

it is incompet.ent, irrelevant md immaterial, hearsay;

not binding upon the d efencant; no foundation laid; and

upon the further ground that it is very leading and very

]!R APPEL: I say, that is hi s e:xgument he has ma de to th e

jury, which" is right on the face of it ltyou , gentlemen of

the jury, cannot my this is a frame-up, beca use I was

'laken ou t of my bed at half past 1 in the morning, 8ld you

wouJd not suppose I would frame up anything at half pest

one in the morning", and he wants to show these rots and

declarations between themselves. W1at has thisdefendant to

do \ra th the acts and declarations between themselves? I

say t that the testimony does not approach the dignity of

being rot in an)'! court, and we have heard nothin but that

hearsay evi den:ee .here all morning.

THE COURT: Read the question, Mr Reporter. (Last question

2
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26 THE COU Rr : Overrul ad.

25 suggestive.
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1 MR APPEL: We ex:c ept.

2 A Yes sir.

3 1m FREDERICKs: Now, the nex:t moming, Tuesday, the 28th

4 ~y 0 f February, s.tate whether or not you -- state what

5 time youcame daVIn to your office, if at all.

6 MRAPPEL: We object to that as innnaterial, hearsay, ir­

7 relevant and incompetent.

8 THE COURT: Overruled.

9 A Got there about 8 o'clock in the morning.

10

11

1m FREDERICKS: Now, just describe, yr Browne, what you

did -- I will ask you first to state whether or not you
(/

12 "\x.ent down to the corner of Third and Los Angeles streets,

13 in that vicinity, in this city, with others, that morning?

14 A I did.

15 Q Nov" state just what you did in regard to that trip

16

17

18

19

20

down the re, "\'\ho~rent wi til you and v;re re they were pI ac ed

and so on, withollt, of course, repeating any conversation

that you had '.ath any of your men. A The night previous I)
to that I arranged with two of my men to go to Third and

Los Angeles and gavetthem ins tfluctiona what to do.

21 }!R APP:BL: We move to strike it out as immf,terial and hear-

22 say.

23 THE COURr: Strike it out.

24 },fR FREDERICKS: All right: take up the answer to the
..

A ~hatmorningqlestion, and come to that again.25

26
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1 struc ted --

2 MR APPEL: We obj ec t

3 THE COURI.': DOn't tell what instructions you gave. just

4 answer the question that has been propounded to you.

5 (Last question read by the repJrter. )

6 lfR F"REDERICKS: Where did you go and who",\'€!nt with you and

7 mere were these other men pIeced? A I went with one man,

8 Campbell. The other men had been sent ahead.

9Q Whowere the other men? A Allison, Ong, Rockwell and

10 Henderson.

11 Q And vlhere did you Sld Campbell go? A we went to the .

12 comer of Thi I'd and llain street and took a car going east,

13 and rode past the corner of Third and Los .Angeles streets,

14 down to "811. V.e got off the car there at thecomer of

15 Third an d Wall t ne ar the co rn er of Thi I'd an d Wall t and

16 stoo d on the south side of Third street and_tchEd the cor-

17 De r of -Third and Los Angel es streets. There \'8S standing

18 on the corner of Third and Los .Ang el es streets, a tall man,

19 wi th a light suit of clothes, smooth-fac ed man, and I ask­

20 ed Campbell if he lmev-v VIDO he was, and jim says, "He looks

21 to me __ tt

22 MR APPEL: Those declarations, of course, are admissible

23 in aridenc e?

24 THE COURT: Don't state what the conversation was.

251m FREDERICKS: DOn't say mat was said.

'261m APPEL: We just wish to be informed, that is
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'All

1 MR FREDERICKS: The counsel had to do was to object.
"

2 MR APPEL: I have obj ected all the tim e until I feel asham-

3 ed to do it any more.

4 A We stood there on the CQ'Dner and watched this man stand-

5 ing on the corner, and Campbell 'JI8lked up Third street

6 going Vol est) and just before he got to Los Angeles street

7 he met Bert Franklin.

8 XR FPJIDEBICKS: VJhere were you at that time? A

9 standing on Third street.

I was

10 Q Third and what?A Third street 'tetween Wall and

11 Los Angeles) near the corner.

12 Q

13 A

Well) youTIere standing whereabouts in the street?

I was standing right at the corner -- there isa bar-

14 room on th e corner; I beli we I was standing right at th e

15 comer of it, cuts off a square ooross the corner.

16 Q Third and Wall? A yes.

17 Q. You "/ere ~':sayine A Canpbell went west on Thi rd

18 street) and he got up n.ear the corner of Los Angele'S" and

19 he met Franklin.

20 Q Is that the first time you had seen Franklin that

21 morning? A That is the fi rs t time I s 8W him at a 11.

22 Q And then ".hat did Campbell do? A Canpbell continued

23 up Thi rd street to slain, and turned south on l,!ain ani

24 Franklin turned around and followed up slowly to the

25 corn er of Thi I'd and Los Angeles and 'walke d ro ross

26 s:treet and went into a saloon on the corner.
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Q Which entrance to the saloon did he go, the entrance on

the corner or the entrance up on Third street, if you notice ?

A 1 don't remember which onei 1 know he went inthat

saloon.

Q Then what did you do? A Then 1 went down the street and

went to Wall street and went through an alley.

Q Went down what street? A Well,1 think that is the

name of the street, and went through the alley and through I

a lot and through a hardware store leading out on Los Angeler

street. 1 then turned south on Los Angeles and went to Four h
and

and went west on Fourth/just as 1 got to the corner of

Fourth and Main Campbell was getting on a street car going

north on Main. 1 jumped on the same car With him. 1 rode

half way down the block and Jim and 1 got off the car and

went ~nto a rooming house onthe corner of Third and Main

street, went upstairs and looked out of a Window that is

leading--the window is facing on Third street, and looked

d own tOWards the corner of Third and Los Angeles street.

Q And state what you saw down onthe corner of Third--

what you saw when you looked out of the window, if anything?

A Well, we were in the window, saw Captain White, he was

walking up and down right on the corner, jus t i paC" ing back an

forth a short distance. Finally Lockwood came up Los

Angeles street, he came from the south, and he walked over

on--it would be the northeast corner, and he stood there ,a

minute and Captain Whi te walked across the street to him,
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1 they stood there jUs t for a few moments and cap tai n Whi te

2 walked close up to Lockwood and Lockwood put his ~and down

3 in his pocket and took something out of his pocket and

4 held something in his hand, then he put it back in his

5 pocket, changed his hams this way, and put them back in,

6 md Whi te walked a Ii ttle ways away from him, a few feet, and

7 came back and· said something to Lockwood and Lockwood En d

8 White walked up Third street going west, and as they got

9 on the corner by the siiloon--.

10 Q What corner was that? A The corner--the saloon which

11 would be ·on--i t is on the nor th--i t would be on the nor th

26 Q ·Wait a moment-'1 didn't get that. Will the reporter

12 wes t corner.

13 Q/ Of what street? A Of Third and Los Angeles, and there

14 is an entrance, gOing north of the Third strea:-tt side.

15! When Lockwood and White got just on the pavement on the nort
I
I

16 west corner Franklin came out of the Third street entrance

17 of this saloor- and met him, and they stood there aWhile;

18 the three of them stood together. Then Franklin and Lockwo d

19 walked ahead and left Whi te standing there and Lockwood

20 ~nd Frcnklin walked slowly up Third street towards Main and

21 White, he came along behind them. He was, 1 guess, oh,

22 20 or 30 feet behind them. When they parted and started

23 up the street we came down ou t of the upstairs to the sid e

24 entrance on Third street side and stepped around into a

25 Ii ttle alley that is r igh t back of the rooming hous e.
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1 read that last part. (!,ast part of answer read by the

2 r ep or t er. )

3 A "Franklin 'and Lockwood passed us right directly across the

4 street from us on Third and turned the corner of Main street

5 going north.

6 Q Where were you when they passed you across the'" street?

7 A 1 was on the south side of Third street inthis li ttle

8 alley.

9 Q In a little alley? A Right across the street. Captain

10 White was coming behind them and George Home, detective

11 George Home was coming along behind Captain Whi te • 1 went

12

13

14

15

16

17

across the street and placed Captain White under arrest and,
turned him over to Home. Then 1 turned and took Campbell

and went up Third Street and around the corner of Third and

turned nor th on Mai n and Lockwood and Frankli~were then

about--well, tWice the length of this room from us going

down Main street •

18 Q Well, let's get that inthe record. About how many yards

19 were Loch.--wood and Franklin ahead of you when you turned the

20 c orner into Main street? A Well, 1 would say about twice

21 the length of this room.

22 Q That wont show inthe record. How ma:r;y yards? A 1 say

23 about 60.

24 Q What did you do? A 1 went down the street, hurried

25 down after them. They were walking together and just--

26 Q They were walking in which dir ection on Main street?
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they were onthe east1 A They wer e go ing nor th on Mai n ;

2 s id e 0 f Mai n •

3 Q Going north and you were onthe same side? A 1 was onthe

4 s arne side behind them.

5 Q Go ahead. A 1 hurried down behind them and when 1 got

6 wi thin about 10 fElet of them 1 seen Mr. narrow comimg across

7 Ma~n street from the west side of N~in coming diagonally

8 ooross the street this way.

9 Q Well, now, a man might come diagonally and come from two.
10 different directions. Just explain ttata little more clearl

11 to the jury whether he was coming southerly across the stree

12 or nor therly across the street? A He was corning from the

13 north going south.

14 Q Across the street? A Crossing the street.

15 Q NOVl, about where in Main street was that? A It was

16 I nearly in the center of the block.

17 Q You know where the cathedral is? A 1 do not.

18 Q The cathedral on Main street? A Yes, sir •

19 Q Do you have it in mind now? A Yes, sir, it is near the

20 corner •

21 Q About how far from the cathedral was it where Mr. narrow

22 was coming across? A Oh, it was qui te a ways this way.

Jus t as Mr. r;a.rrow stepped upon th

South.

Now, What occurred? A

This way? AQ

Q

25 sidewalk Franklin turned to Lockwood and

26 turned like that and stepped out towards the curb, and j

23

24
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1 as Mr. Franklin and Mr. Darrow met I stepped in qetween them.

2
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They just met right on the sidewalk. I stepped in between

them and pushed Bert back into the middle of the sidewalk,

pushed him back like that. (Indicating.)
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Q What was said by ei th er partj'es, if any? A I said to

Bert, I said, "Bert, I want you." He said, "What for?"

I says, "You have been an officer long enough to know what

I want you for; you know wm t you have been doing. If

Q Where vas, Darrow ;at that time? A Well, at that time

I don't know mere he VIas because my 'tack was to him.

Q Well, vhat, if anything, di d Darrow do when you step­

ped in between them -- Mr Darrow? A After I got Frank-

lin back into the sidewalk f,nd I had started wi th him, and

came down }Jain street with him I looked over my shoul der

and lofr Darrow was out in themidUe of the street going

south, and east -- goiI\g south and west -- going back across

the street.

Q Going towards Thind street or towards Second street?

A GoiI\g to\t.ards Third street.

Q In the middle o,t the street, you mean the carriageway?

A. I mean between th e curbstone and the car-track.

Q Well, did you overhear 'Nhether Mr Darrow or 1fr Frank­

lin said 8D¥'thiDg to each other; did you overhear that?

A I did not.

1m ROGERS: Wait a moment. That question assumes -- I

don't lmow '."heth er cOl1l'ml means it to assume -- that

question assumed that sore thiI\g was said as 8 matter of

fact.

251m FREDERICKS: No.

26 MR ROGERS: .I don't think the "'ritness'i:sstimony has mid
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1 that.

2 MR FREDERICKS: I don't think th e qu es tion assumed that

3
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"whether lt
•

:MR ROGERS: Let me see whether it is.

TEE COURI': Read the question and answer. (Last question

and answer read by the reporter.)

VR FREDERICKS: I think it iscle ar that the 'wi tness didn't

hear anything. Then what did you do? A I valked down

~"'ain street '::ith Frmklin a short distance.

Q Don't repeat anything, now, that Franklin may have

said to you after youarrested him, unless I ask you for it.

A I walked down M·ain street with Franklin a short waysl

and turned him over to Canpbell and Allison, and I went

ahead. Lockwood had continued on dovon the street. He

ves then near Jy down to the Cathedral at that time, and I

went up to him and picked him up ~nd walked along wi th him

until'\ve got nearly to th e comer of Second street.

Q Second and what? A Main; Second and l'o!ain. At that

time }Ir Henderson, I think i t\'.6S, c arne along, and I tu rned

Lockwood over to Henderson, and Iv~nt back to Franklin

end Campb~ll and we then came on to the Ha II 0 f Records

to your ;office.

.Q Wlich vay did you come? A we came up Main street to

First and out First and Spring and up Spring to Franklin

and turned in to Franklin and around NeVI Hig h.

0, State 'Irhether or not yousaw this defendant , ~!r
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again t hat morning before you got to the Ha 11 of Records?

A I di d.

Q Where? A mn Franklin street between Spring and New

High.

Q And wh at, if anything , va s sai d and don e 1:U him ct th at

t1me? A Mr Franklin --

Q Mr who? A Mr narrow came a cross from th e south

side of Franklin street over to the north s1 de that I vas

on and spoke to me right near the old post-office, that is

on the north side, just around the corner from Franklin

street; he said to me, he says, "1vfy God, Browne, mat is

all this?", and I turned to him and said, "Bribery".

He mys, "Isn't there 8l\Ything that can be done?lt He says,

"This is terrible." I says, "I don't mow of anything

that can,\:; e done, you will have to see Captain Freder-

icks." He says, "Isn't th ere ~nything you can do?" I

says, ·"I cannot d.o at\Vthing."!· He says, "If I had movm

this ....\8S going to happen, I never would have allowed it

to have been done." I then said to ur Th:lrrow, "You ought

to have better sense than to hire a man like this to do

this work." He says, "This is terrible." I says, "You

ou,gh t to mow .Franklin. If He says "Franklin came to me"

he says, "very hig bly r eco~ended bY l!r McCormick an d

9thers. 1f I says, ltMr Darrow, I don't lmOVl \'rhat I can do."

He say s, "My God, Brovme, this is t e:-rible. "

A JUROR: We cannot hea r very well.
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1 ]ffi FORD: Read that last, Mr Repo Iter.

2 MR ROGERS: Suppo sa you read it all.

3 (Last answer read.)

4 MR FREDERICKS: Now, goa head. A He says t "This i's

5 terrible, you do the best you c an for us tt
, he says, "and

6 I yJill take care of you."

7 MR FREDERICKS: How is that; read that. (Last answer

8 read.) Woo t el sa did he say, if anything? A That vas

9 a bOll t all he said~

10 TEE COURI': Gentlemen of the jury, bear in mind the usual

11 admonition. ~ will take a recess for five minutes at

12 this time.

13

14 (After recess. Defendant in court with counsel. J"ury

15 return ed to· court room.)

16

17

18
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26
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2 on the stand.

3 THE COURT· You may proceed,gentlemen.

4 BY MR. FREDERICKS. Q 'K.'d.r. Browne, state whether or not you

5 dictated the conversation that you had wi th Mr. Darrow at

6 that time on that day? 1 am referring to the time you have

Except.

7 been talking about when he came to you dOVin here on Spring

8 and Franklin street, ali you were coming to the Hall of

9 Records on November 28. State whether or not you dictated

10 a statement of that conversation to anybody· immediately

11 :afterwards.

12 MR. APPEL- We object to that as immaterial, incompetent,

13 irrelevant and immaterial, hearsay, self-serving.

14 THE COURT. Answer the question yes or no. Objection over-

15 I ruled.

16 I ME.. APPEL.

17 A yes, sir •

18 BY MR. FREDERICKS. Q State whetber or not the statement

19 that you dictated, of that conversation, was written up and

20 whether you afterwards read it.

21 MR. APPEL. We obj ec t to that upon the same grounds as

22 stated, incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial for any

23 purpose whatsoever, hearsay, not binding uponthe defendant,

24 self -8 erving.

25 THE COURT' Obj e ction overruled.

26 MR • APPEL. We except.
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I
r
I

I

[
I

I I

A Yes, sir.

Q State whether or not what you read over after it was

wri tte n up wa"s correct as to what transpired and as to what

you had dictated?

MR • APPEL. We object to that as incompetent, irrelevant and

immater ial,hearsay, calling for a conclusion and opinion

of the witness, it is leading and suggestive, not binding

upon the defendant,

MR. FORD. Simply laying a foundatio nfor a n:emorandum.

THE COURT' Objection overruled,

A What was the ques ti on?

(Last qu~stion read by the reporter.)

A It wa'S.

~MR. APPEL. Your Honor pleases, we think that the record

would not be complete so far asthe rights of this;~ defendant'

are concerned, unless we follow our objections to this

examination with a notion. We move to strike out the

15
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18 aridence of the wi tnes6 with reference to the document or

19 writing or transcription of any dictation of the witness

20 referred to by the district attorney, and referred to by the

21 wi tness iIi his answers, uponthe ground that the directions

22 required by law to be followed with reference to the

23 examination of a wi tness co ncerning a document were not

24 obs erved by the dis tr ic t attorney in that the provis ions of

25 Section. 2054 of the Code of Civil 'Procedure were

26 either by the court or by the district attorney.
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the whole evidence of the witness uponthe matter inquestion

be stricken out.

THE COURT. Motion to strike out denied.

MR • APPEL • Now, your Honor pleases--that is all right.

MR • FREDERI CKS. Q ~O?l, Mr. Browne I show you a document

here, referring you to page? of the same and ask you if

you know what that page contains?

MR • ROGERS. :aefore any answer is made, your Honor please,

we call for the enforcement of the rule.

THE COURT. Yes, counsel is entitled to see it.

MR • roRD. Before it is introduced.

MR. ROGERS. Before any questions are asked.

THE OOURT. Yes, counsel is entitled to see it.

1m • FREDERICKS· The only part of the report or memorandum

in controversy or "use, is the part referring to this con-

versation. Counsel has taken the opportunity to read the

entire report over. I don.t think he is entitled to it.

THE COUR T' He has that right. "

MR. ROGERS. 1 would not if 1 didn't think 1 had the right.

1 hope Mr. Fredericks don 1 t think 1 am peaching.

THE COURT' 1 think counsel has that right.

MR • FREDERICKS 1 don,t think he haa that right to take a

long report and read it. 1 don.t think he has the right.

1 don't make any particular objection to it only the time

it takes up.

MR. ROGERS. Counsel has seen the document.



MR. ROGERS •. That is a very infelicitous form of getting

(Last question read by the reporter. )
1

2

3

'MR. i"r eder i ck s • What was the question now,
166~

I
I

4 at it. 1 think 1 know what counsel wants to do, but the

5 form of it is not proper:.. legal way, it occurs to me, to

6 do it. 1 think we will object upon the ground that what

26 swered, ' yOU ought to know what it is, it is bribery.'

to the conversation--as to what Mr. Darrow s aid to you.

counsel must do is ask the witness if that is the document

1 thought if 1 did that1 will do that.

first thing he s aid to you, Mr. Browne?

Now, I

I

1 haven't the slightest objection to M~ Browne

said, "'My God--"HeA

MR • ROGERS •

Br9'J'le •

A (Reading) . "My God, Browne, what is all this?" "1 an-

reading the conversation from that document as his statement

not a particle.

MR. FREDERICKS. Q Go ahead and read it.

MR • ROGERS. Read it clear ly so the jury can hear it, Mr.

Q Now, will you refresh your memory from the notes there as

referred to and if it is call his attention to certain parts

of it.

What was the

'MR • FREDERICKS'

would call forth an objection.

Q Is that the document to which you referred to, which you

made out as you have testified, referring you to page 7?

A Yes.
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2

then said, 'My God, 1 wouldnJt have had this happen

worldj if 1 had known that this was going to happen
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for the I
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3 way I never would have allowed it to be done.

4 anything that youcan do? This is terrible.~ff

-
lan, t there
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I said, uYou will have to talk to Captain Fredericks."

I6rrow then said, "Browne, this is terrible; for God's

sake, can't you do a ruthing for us?" I answered, "You

Ought to have knOyffi better than employ a man like Frank­

lin, as he is alvays ·drunk. I don't know wmt I can cb for

you~" Darrow then said, "He came to me highly r econnnend-

ed froml{rl~CConnickand others. J3r'owne, do the best you

can and I will take care aT you." I answered, "1fr Darrow,

you will have to see the Big Smoke." I then turned and

left him and came direct to your office.

MR ROGERS: Will you be kind enortgh to ask him so we ,<viII

understand it, vm.o is the "Big Smoke"?

1.1:R FREDERICKS: Cotmsel can ask that on cross-examination,

if he vants to.

Q Now,:Mr Bro'1me, ',nat didyou do after you had this

conversation nth 1v~r Darrow? A I c arne direct to your of­

fice.

Q ..And "...,rho did yousee tl~re or meet there in the office?

A When I came into your office, Mr Pridham, a super­

visor,'}(JaS in there.

Q Who el se? A No one at tha t time.

Q \Jlhere v,ere. the others, Franklin and White ani the

other officers? A They were out in the hall and out in

the outer office.

Q Well, then, mat did you do?

MR APPBL: Wai t a moment. we obj ec t
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MR A PPEJJ:. Exc ept ion.

MRAPPEL: Take an~ception. A Captain. White turned over

to you $3500). .

MR FREDERICKS: For the purpose of tracing money.

THE COURT: Obj ec t i on or erml ed •

j

This is for the purpose

A I do.

qu estion read by the reporter.).

Q Do you know Who di d?

of tracing money?

this asked of the wi tness, on the same groum s.

THE COU ill : Obj ec ti on CN errul ed.

A I brottght Mr Franklin and Captain Whi te an d Mr LOCk-

wood into your a fric e.

Q State whether or not ar.rrbody received a sum of money

from anyone of tho sa present, and if so, how much and frcm

whom?

Q In what denomin etion of bills, if you :r-emember --

well t I will ask you, did you take down th e numbers of those

bills? A . I di d not.

rations or the conduc t of aI\Y person 0 r persons not in th e

presence of the defendfnt at this time, as incompetent,

irrelevant and immaterial, rod hearsay and not bin ding

upon thedefendant.

MR FREDERICKS: Tracing mon~, your Honor.

THE.COURr: Let me have that question t'gain. (Last

MR APPEL: We make thesame obj e:::tion, upon the same grounds

statedin ourlmt obj ection to the last question before
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I-
I Q Who? A George Home.

-

2 Q .And did anybody else tumn over any money?

: 6 (0

A Mr Lock-

3 wood.

4 Q How much? A $500.

5 Q. Did you notice in \\hat denomination of bills that \'as?

6 A Th at 'Was a $5001 bill ..

7 Q Do you kn0\7 vhat the oth er bills, What denomination

the on es that White turned over were? A I know t tare V,6S

one $500 bill, because we had a littleargummt over that.

8

9
1

101 Q yes. Do you know '!lhat the bills were? A I don,t
J

/
!t

11 remember ·'!hat the oth ers were.

12 I M:R FREDERICKS: Cross-examine.

13 :MR ROGERS: n[ay I have thestatement. please, shovm to the

14 wi tness?

15 :MR :rnEDERICKS: No, I do not think counsel can use that

16 on cross-examination.

17 MR ROGERS: Let me have section 2047.

181m FREDERICKS: We are perfectly '.vi1ling that counsel

19 I shou1<i reve the p~e that 78S u sed in refreshi~ the

20 wi mess' memory.

21 MR ROGERS: Where a wi tness is al10W3d to refresh his mem-

ory,section 20.47, inrespoot to the fact of aIVthing that

he has said

MR FREDERICKS: Rather than to c; et into an argmnent --

lffi FORD: Here, take it. (Handing document to Mr Rage

You didn't know that7as the law, did you?MR ROGERS:

22

23

24/
I

25 I

261
I
I
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1 CROSS-EXAMINATION

2 MR ROGERS: Mr Browne, I want to call yourattention first,

3 in order of th e testimony, to the incident of you and Canp-

4 bell -malking east or being at Third and \Vall getting off a

5 car th ere. Now, starting your memory a t tat point

6 MR FORD: We thought t my '.vanted to ecamin e on this memor-

7 andum..

8 MR APPEL: We ,,?ill take our own time about it.

9 :MR FORD: Then vlai t un til they need it.

10 MR APFEL: We are entitled to it.

11 THE COURT: v~at is the objection to tl:Ii.s, Mr Ford?

12 MR FORD: Our objection is this -- I have no oQj ~tion

13 to cross':examining on it ',nen the witness is allowed to re-

14 fresh his memory from a memorandum, they have a righ t to

15 cross-examine the vvitness with regard to that memorandum,

16 'but they have no right to use our property for the purpo s~

17 of cross-examining him on other matters. NOVI, if they de­

18 sire to c ross-examine wi th regard to this memorandum, we

19 are glad to let them have it, but let them do it, but we

20 do not propose to let them have it for other purpo sese
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Honor's attention to the fact that the question asked of the

witness is no t on cross-examination concerning this document

THE COURT. I presume they will reach the cross-examination

concerning this memorandum when they get ready.

1 will call yourr andum, but they ar e no t doing that.

1m!
MR. ROGERS. (Reading) But i nsuch case the wr i ting mua t· I
be produced and may, be seen by the adverse party, who may, I!

if he choose, cross-examine on it, or may read it to the

jury. 1

MR. FORD' Sure, and 1 am perfectly willing they should do i1'

but they are now going off on.. other matters. I

MR. ROGERS. You don, t know what 1 am gOing on.

MR • FORD' They can read this memorandum, if they want to,

but if they do not wan t to do that--they can have the rnemo-

MR. FORD. Sure, your Honor, but 1 propose to keep the

memorandum until they are ready to do 80.

MR. APPEL· This is going to lead up to it.

THE COURT. Yes. Objection overruled. Counsel for the

refendant can read the entire memorandum wi thout order of the

court on the same condition as you have. The court does

not know what is in the memorandum, outside of the particul

page, and it hal:! not been called to the court's attention.

~. FORD. But, this document contains notes which we desire

to have for our own use during the examination of this

wi tnessf except during auchportion of the time aathey

examining it directly concerning that document.
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asking for \
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it for thq
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to it imme dia tely l
, I

our document until such time as he needs it.

THE COURT. Counsel says he needs it in consul~

purpose of cross-examination.

THE COURT- Counsel has stated he will get

MR • FORD' 1 think we are entitled to it.

THE COUR T' Objection overruled_

1m. FORD. We are not· making an objection, we are

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

•

8 BY MR - ROGERS. Q 1 direct your attention, Mr. Browne, to

9 t he corner of Third and Wall when youand Mr. Campbell, as 1

10 recall it, got off the car, Mr. Campbell walked west on

11 Third, did he not? A Yes,. sir -

12 Q You remained at Third and Wall? A yes, sir •

13 Q Mr. Campbell in his walk up towards Los Angeles, as he

14 approached Los Angeles, met Mr_ Fr an klin? A Yes, sir •

A yes, sir •

1 would say about 25 yards.A

They s hook hands •A

Then what happened? A Then they par ted and Campbell

Shook hands, and did they talk?

them?

Q

Q

him to meet Campbell r

went on up Third street to Main.

Q Was it possible, owing to the contour of the ground, for

you to observe Campbell going all the way? A Yes, sir •

Q Now, directly, or shortly--l donlt think you said direct-

ly, rot shortly after you saw Campbell and Franklin talk

Q Give me your best recollection as to how far Bert Frankli I
I

was from the corner of !hird and Los Angeles when you observqd

I
I

Q Then When Bert Franklin met Campbell, what happened betwe1n
I
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of Fourth and Main •

A Yes, sir.

Q Looked out of th e window and. Franklin was -- and White

Q Then youwent up into a lodging house? A Yes.

Q Climbed the stairs to the first story and into a room?

A Less than ten minutes.

A --then 1 seen the direction he went in and 1Q Yea.

161~
each other, you went around through an alley, didn f t you, I

a vacant lot ~ a hardware s tore, and came out on Main s treet'?1

A After 1 Be~n Campbell turn south on Main street--

I

Q Now, how long would you th ink from your recollection it I
took you to go from Third and Wall where you were through t e

alley through the vacant lot, through the hardware store,

around Fourth on Main and into the lodging house? A Well,

1 went from Wall and Third to Fourth and Main pretty fast. I
Q Well, of course, but 1 am speaking about your best judgment

of the time.

tried to head him off.

Q Abou t as long as it took Campbell to go from Los Angeles

to Main on Third, youremained at Third and Wall, then as

soon as you saw Campbell turn to go south and leave Third

and Wall, wen t through an alley, a vacant lot, a hardware

s tore and came out on some street. What street was it, Mr.

Browne? A Los Angeles street.

Q Then did you go around that Fourth street block, come

over to It1k>ur th and go around on llJain street? A 1 went up

to the corner of Fourth and went west on Fourth to the corn
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1 not yet passed anything to Lockwood, had he? A Not at

2 that time.

3 Q Therefore', after Campbell and Franklin ~etand talked,

The last you saw of him was right there at that corner,

Franklin was in that vicinity for about 10--about 10

minutes before White passed anything to Lockwood, isntt

4

5

6

7

so?

Q

A Mus t have been.

that I
I

I

8 wasn 1 t it? A Going towards that saloon.

9 Q We will get to that in a noment, probably as he did.

10 That saloon was right there at the corner,wasn't it, Mr.

11 Browne, the nor thwes t corner, isn't it? A Yes, sir.
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1 Q Third and Los AngelefJ. In the meantime, '!here vas Home,

2 do you know? A Who?

3 Q George Home? A I didn't know he ""as there at all.

4 Q You didn't know he ves there at all? A No.

5 Q Did you have azwthing to do with Home going there?

6 A I did not.

7 Q DOn't know -,rho sent him, who or how he got there?

8 A I did not.

9 Q Did you know t tat Franklin and Home went before Lock-

10 'WOod -- before White passed the money?

11 UR :EREDERICKS: Objected to as assuming a fact not in evi­

12 deme. There is no evidence that Franklin rod Home met.

13 MR ROGERS: I dont t have to have wi denc e. I an asking if

14 11 e don't know t m t is a fac t, 'Nhich I may do end lead him

15 on cross-examination a~"ays.

16 THE COURT: Overruled.

17 A KneW' it at that time?

18 Q yes. A I di d not.

19 Q Have you heerd it since, if you did not at that time?

20 llR FORD: VJhether he h (Brd its ine or no t is hearsay.

21 I obj ect to it on tmt ground.

22 MR ROOERS: That is right.

23 THE COURI.': Question withdrawn?

24 1lR roGERS: Yessir. Now, after Franklin met Campb ell

25 and had a Ii ttle talk wi th him, did Franklin turn right

26 around an d walk righ t back to Los Angeles, 0 r did



1 a Ii ttle furth er doV1.ll to Vl6rd Wall and then turn and come

2 reck? A After Campbell left Franklin, he hESitated,

3 and he artarted to come towards me, ~nd I backed back in the

4 madow of that corner there, and he stopped and turned and

5 'Walked out tovard the curb and watched Jim go up the street,

6 Md I watched. the pair of them, and when Campbell turned

7 th e corner of lvfain street, by the time he got to Main

8 street, and Franklin had got up and was coming wross the

9 street to this corner.

10 Q Now, George Home, is that the same man that went East

11 after Diekleman, do you know? A Yes si r.

12 Q Do you knoW' whether Georg e Home was wo rking va th the

13 furns men at that· time?

14 MR FORD: Obj ected to as i rrelwant and imma terisl and

15 hearsay.

16 THE COURT: Obj a: tion 0 verrul ed.

17 A. George Home was not working with the Ihrns people tomy

18 lmovrl edg e.

19 MR ROGERS: He vas detailed off the Ci ty Department and

20 worked with the furns men on the 1J:cNamara case.

21 1m FREDERICKS: We obj a:t to that being a statement fran

22 counsel. If counsel·,-.ants to know ':mo George Home 'Was work­

23 ing for, that is another matter, but he is making a state­

24 ment here.

25 THE COURT: Read the question.

26 trR FREDERICKS: He says GeoIge Mome was detailed off th
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1 City Department and working for B1rns.

2 1lR ROGERS: Let's have the question.

3 (Last question read by the repo Iter.)

4 lJR ROGERS: Wasn't he?

5 THE COUEr: I heard it that way.

6 MR FORD: He didn't say it that eYe He now has added

7 th e words, "Wasn't he", hims elf.

8 MR ROGERS: If I ditil't say it, I can say it with a rising

9 inflection of the voic e, and any man with a knowledg e of

10 the ~lish language and oratory could understand what I

11 meant?

121m FREDERICKS: We obj oot to it as dual in its character.

13 THE COURT: OVerruled.

14 ~.m FREDERICKS: Two questions t tare.

15 1fR FORD: Obj ec ted to on the further g rotm d it is imma t erial

16 and not c ross- ex:amination whether he was detailed on the cas

17 has got nothing to do with the cross-examination of this

18 witness. He has-asked him about George Home, if he vas a

19 ci tydetective. He said yes. He asked him if he was a fums

20 man, and he said he vas not to my knowledge•. Now, connsel

21 esked him another question, "Was hedetaild to work on the

22 case, and dido't he \·,ork wi th the B1ms people." That is'

23 the question he esked, ineffect, $Jnd v.bether he was or

24 mether he \\Qrked with the fums people, doesn't make

25 him a Burns man, nor doesn't throw any

26 this witness has testified to.



'I, 6t9

THE COURr: Objection overrul ed.

'MR ROO ERS: Please read it including the ttwasn ' t hett wi th

the interrogation point and rising inflection. (Last

qwstion read by the repo rter.) A Not to my knowl edge.

UR ROGERS: yr BDQ\me, a t any ra t e, you di dn 't know,

although youwere in charge of that si.tuation down there at

the corner of Third and Los Angeles streets) plroing the

men, you dich't kno\vthat George Home was there, for what

purpo sa he vas t rere or how he came there?

:MR :EREDERICKS: That is objected to as assuming a fact not

in evidence, that being -- the statement being, "Although

youwerein charge of tat situation down there". He said

he vas in charge of a certain number of men whovl'ere down

there. Whether he,,~s in charge 0 f the si tuation has no t

been in evidenc e.

TEE COURr: OVerruled.

A The first that I kne\v that Georg,e Home was th ere, was

'Mlen I saw him following C~.ptain Whi te up Thi rd street. I

kne.v he was an officer and I turned him over to him.

MR ROGERS: ur Bro\me, you were at the t time, and are now,

th e chi €If detective for th e Di strict Attorney's office,

isn't tat your ti~le? A Yes sir.

Q Well, now, tho sa were detec tives down t here who were

working wi th you on th at occasion) w'ere theu- not, so d enom­

1.nated on the books of the Di strict Attorney's office?

A Yea sir.
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MR • FORD. Just a moment--

Q Who?

:MR. FREDERICKS. Let himal one.

MIt • Ford. All right. It is hearsay-­

MR • FREDERICKS. Let him alone.

And youwere their chief, weren't you? A Ye~ sir.

And you were in charge of them? A 1 was. I

Now, dod you know who sent Home down there on that occasi~n!

1 do.

Q

Q

Q

A

of the clerk.

MR. roRD. Just a moment--that is our private document. If

they want to introduce it in evidence that is their right,

but it is not going to be marked for identification

THE COURT. Go ahead, answer the question.

A Captain fredericks.

MR. ROGERS. Q But he didn't tell you anything about it?

A Di dn 't have a ch ano e •

Q Well, he didn't tell youanything about it? A He didn't.

Q Whim did yousee Captain Fredericks that morning?

A A little after 8 o'clock.

Q This happened about--you got down there about half past

eight, didn't you? A yes, sir.

Q Who else did you see down there on that occasion?

THE COURT. 1 think this is a good time to adjourn.

1m. ROGERS. 1 offer, before we conclude, I ask that this

be marked for identification and be placed in the custody
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it out of our hands.

THE COURT· Just a moment.

MR. FORD· We have no objections to it being marked for

idantification but it is not going to be placed in the cus-

t ody of the clerk until it is all offered in evidence. If

counsel desires to introduce it in evidence let them go

and introduce it in evidence and be read 'to the jury, but

it is not in the custody of the clerk yet. It is ours and

we desire to have it during the noon hour •

MR • APFEL. We are placing it in the hands of the cour t for

the purpos e of using it after adjournment.

THE COURT' 1 cannot see what your objection is. I cannot

s ee your point.

MR. FORD. My objection is that it is our document and we

-are entitled to it during the noon hour. We have a right

to read that over and go through it as w~ are working

e very day, and they cannot simply take our document from

us and have it marked for identification.

THE COURT. It will not be taken away from you.

MR. FORD. BIt he wants it placed in the custody of the

clerk.

THE COURT. As much as any paper that is inthe custody of
..

the clerk, is available to either counsel.

MR. FREDERICKS, Have you a copy of that up in your office?

UP. • BROWNE. 1 have.

MR •. FREDERICKS. Let them have it •

(Jury 'admonished. Recess until :3 0 'clock P.M. )




